
UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
NORTHERN DISTRICT OF INDIANA

SOUTH BEND DIVISION

EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY )
COMMISSION and )
ROBBIE L. CALDWELL, )

)
Plaintiffs, )

)
v. )

)
PRODESIGN, LLC, )

)
Defendant. )

Case No. 3:04CV 623RM

CALDWELL’S COMPLAINT

NATURE OF THE ACTION

This is an action by Robbie L. Caldwell (“Caldwell”) under Title VII of the Civil Rights Act

of 1964 and Title I of the Civil Rights Act of 1991 to correct unlawful employment practices on the

basis of sex and to provide appropriate relief to Caldwell, who was adversely affected by such

practices.  Caldwell alleges that Defendant subjected her to sexual harassment by a male co-worker

and allowed the hostile environment to interfere with the performance of other employees.

JURISDICTION AND VENUE

1. Jurisdiction in this action is based on the existence of federal questions and upon the

rights of action created under federal statute.  28 U.S.C. §§ 451, 1331, 1337, and 1343.  This action

is arises under Title 42, United States Code, §§ 2000e-5 (“Title VII”), et seq. and Section 102 of the

Civil Rights Act of 1991, 42 U.S.C. § 1981a.

2. Venue for this action lies within the United States District Court for the Northern
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District of Indiana, South Bend Division because the employment practices alleged to be unlawful

were committed within the jurisdiction of the Northern District of Indiana, South Bend Division.

PARTIES

3. Plaintiff Caldwell is, at all relevant times, a citizen of the United States of America,

and a resident of the State of Indiana, living in the Northern District.  She is a resident of Elkhart

County, Indiana.

4. At all relevant times, Defendant, Prodesign, LLC (“Employer”), has continuously

been an Indiana corporation, doing business in the State of Indiana and the City of Elkhart, and has

continuously had at least fifteen (15) employees.

5. At all relevant times, Defendant Employer has continuously been an employer

engaged in an industry affecting commerce within the meaning of Sections 701(b), (g) and (h) of

Title VII, 42 U.S.C. §§ 2000e(b), (g) and (h).

STATEMENT OF CLAIMS

6. On November 4, 2003, more than thirty (30) days prior to the institution of this

lawsuit, Caldwell filed a charge with the Equal Employment Opportunity Commission

(“Commission”) alleging violations of Title VII by Defendant Employer.

7. Since at least January, 2000, Defendant Employer has engaged in unlawful

employment practices at its Elkhart, Indiana facility, in violation of Section 703(a)(1) of Title VII,

42 U.S.C. §§ 2000e-2(a)(1).  The unlawful practices include subjecting Caldwell to a hostile

environment, sexual harassment by a male co-worker and allowing the hostile environment to

interfere with the work performance of other employees.

8. The effect of the practices complained of in paragraph 7 above has been to deprive
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Caldwell of equal employment opportunities and otherwise adversely affect her status as an

employee because of her sex.

9. The unlawful employment practices complained of in paragraph 7 above were

intentional.

10. The unlawful employment practices complained of in paragraph 7 above were done

with reckless indifference to the federally protected rights of Caldwell.

PRAYER FOR RELIEF

WHEREFORE, Caldwell respectfully requests that this Court:

A. Grant a permanent injunction enjoining Defendant Employer, their officers,

successors, assigns and all persons in active concert or participation with them, from engaging in

sexual harassment, and any other employment practice which discriminates on the basis of sex.

B. Order Defendant Employer to institute and carry out policies, practices, and programs

which provide equal employment opportunities to women and which eradicate the effects of its past

and present unlawful employment practices.

C. Order Defendant Employer to make whole Caldwell by providing compensation for

past and future non-pecuniary losses resulting from the unlawful employment practices described

in paragraph 7 above, including but not limited to physical and emotional pain and suffering, mental

anguish, and loss of enjoyment of life, in amounts to be determined at trial.

D. Order Defendant Employer to make whole Caldwell by providing compensation for

past and future pecuniary losses resulting from the unlawful employment practices described in

paragraph 7 above, including but not limited to out of pocket expenses and medical expenses, plus

prejudgment interest, in amounts to be determined at trial.



4

E. Order Defendant Employer to pay Caldwell punitive damages for their malicious and

reckless conducted described in paragraph 7 above in amounts to be determined at trial.

F. Award Caldwell her costs of this action, including attorney’s fees, and such relief as

the Court deems necessary and proper in the public interest. 

REQUEST FOR TRIAL BY JURY

Caldwell requests a jury trial on all issues properly tried by jury.

Respectfully submitted this December 2, 2004.

CHESTER LAW OFFICE

s/ Edward J. Chester                                            
Edward J. Chester, #3749-20
Laura L. Ezzell, #24174-20
Attorneys for Intervening Plaintiff, Robbie L. Caldwell

230 N. Main St., Suite 2
P.O. Box 1768
Elkhart, IN 46515-1768 
(574)296-1515

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

I hereby certify that on the 2nd day of December, 2004, a copy of the foregoing pleading was
filed electronically.  Notice of this filing will be sent to the following parties by operation of the
Court’s electronic filing system.  Parties may access this filing through the Court’s system.  

Jo Ann Farnsworth
EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY COMMISSION
joann.farnsworth@eeoc.gov

Michelle Eisele
EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY COMMISSION
michelle.eisele@eeoc.gov

Laurie Young
EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY COMMISSION
laurie.young@eeoc.gov

David J. Carr
ICE MILLER
david.carr@icemiller.com

Julie M. Conrad
ICE MILLER
julie.conrad@icemiller.com
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I certify that on the 2nd day of December, 2004, a copy of the foregoing pleading was
mailed, by first class United States mail, postage prepaid and properly addressed to:

Jo Ann Farnsworth
Michelle Eisele
Laurie Young

EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY COMMISSION
101 W. Ohio St., Suite 1900

Indianapolis, IN 46204
and

David J. Carr
Julie M. Conrad

ICE MILLER
One American Square, Box 82001

Indianapolis, IN 46282-0200

CHESTER LAW OFFICE

s/ Edward J. Chester                                            
Edward J. Chester


